
  

 
 

 
  

 
     

 
          

      
 

              
       

 
      
         

   
     

 
         

      
       

       
          

       
    

 
       

   
   
    

  
 

         
            

 
 

         
 

 
 

April 22, 2025 

To the members of Council, 

Submission by Paws for Parks - Item 2025 IE20.9 – Toronto Dog Off-Leash Strategy: 
Citywide Approach to Dogs Off-Leash Areas 

We would like to add to our submission of April 7, 2025 with respect to the suggested Off-Leash 
Area (“OLA”) setback of 10m from Environmentally Significant Areas. 

We have been advised through the consultation process that OLAs are not required to comply 
with the Provincial Planning Statement (“PPS”) requirement for a 120m setback from 
ANSIs/ESAs, because they are not a built structure or traditional development. It is unclear 
whether a legal opinion was obtained by the City on this position. 

A plain reading of the PPS would suggest otherwise. The PPS rules apply to any "site 
alteration" and the definition of site alteration in the PPS is as follows: "Site alteration: means 
activities, such as grading, excavation and the placement of fill that would change the landform 
and natural vegetative characteristics of a site." (Provincial Planning Statement Section 8). That 
is a low bar and, presumably, some types of alterations needed to create OLAs would meet this 
threshold. We are curious as to what staff are relying on to dismiss the 120m setback from 
ESAs in the PPS. 

The PPS also states that: "Natural features and areas shall be protected for the long term." 
(PPS 4.1.1), which "natural features and areas" would include ESAs. The Natural Heritage 
Reference Manual (“NHRM”) contains recommendations for buffers and other advice for 
protection, hopefully staff have reviewed these and will be in a position to implement the 
protective recommendations where needed near ESAs. 

We would ask that the PPS and NHRM be carefully reviewed, a legal opinion obtained and the 
appropriate legal setback from ESAs be set in compliance with the letter and spirit of the PPS 
and NHRM. 

Easy links to Natural Heritage Manual and PPS are here: 

https://docs.ontario.ca/documents/3270/natural-heritage-reference-manual-for-natural.pdf 
https://www.ontario.ca/page/provincial-planning-statement-2024 
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Relevant portion of the NHRM here: 

Regards, 

Tracy Loconte 

Tracy Loconte 

www.pawsforparks.com 
Instagram: @pawsforparks 
https://www.facebook.com/paws4parks 
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